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building a new bridge on the line of Water Vennel and
over the ford. Apart from New Bridge Street the plan of the plots,
streets and spaces of Ayr today is substantially that of the medieval
town and the continuing attractive character of the town is
intimately involved in the plan’s survival.

The West End is a rectangular pattern of straight streets set out
in relation to the pre-existing road south from the head of Sand-
gate. The early speculative development of Barns Street fixed the
position of the south side of Wellington Square and the drop to the
Low Green limited its westward extent. The width of the central
garden is equal to the length of the plots flanking the square but
this width may have been fixed by the intended length of frontage
of the proposed County Buildings.

Wellington Square — described in the Municipal Corpora-
tions Report of 1835 as a ‘square of ground in front of the new
court house ° — was not designed in the spirit of the closed urban
space laid out in Georgian London but was intended more as a
wide forecourt or esplanade to set off the County Buildings. The
two rows of houses were of three storeys and set so far apart as
merely to demark the floor pattern rather than enclose the space.
The ‘square’ lacks enclosure to define its space and there are
vista-like views outward focused on the backland of High Street or
the limitless blue (or grey) of the Clyde. The symmetrical layout
and the controlled character of the buildings make it distinguish-
able as a planned space, but it is a poor example of that date and is
what Camillo Citte has called ©artless planning’. Owned by the
town, and not the square, the central garden is enclosed. with
entrances placed to avoid the normal lines of pedestrian traffic. It
has a symmetrical layout of gravel paths, grass and flower beds and
has collected a central war memorial and assorted statues. The use
and design of the square would be enhanced if the space between
the two rows of houses was unified, simplified, made exclusively
pedestrian and planted with trees.’

The County Buildings were designed as a free standing temple
on the edge of the sea backed by the sky and the distant views of
the Firth of Clyde. The prison was tucked in behind so as not to
mar this romantic aspect. The isolation of the County Buildings
has been maintained by the openness of the Low Green and the use
of the north west corner as a bowling green, and only slightly
compromised by the extension of its offices over the site of the
prison in 1931, There is a notable view northward looking past its
portico to the tower of St. John’s Church in the citadel.

3. The trees most suitable to withstand the salt-laden wind are: Cornish Elm
(ulnus stricta wheatleyi) and Sycamore (acer pseudoplatanus). Shorter trees
(25 ft. to 40 ft.) are Whitebeam (sorbus aria) and Swedish Whitebeam (sorbus
intermedia).
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The terraces nearby are uniform speculative developments of
various dates along the rectangular pattern of streets with no
attempt at space enclosure. The severe Victorian Barns Terrace
c.1860 is pleasantly set back behind a row of trees making a com-
plex relation of parallel spaces with the earlier terraces of Alloway
Place opposite.

The 19th century layout of plots and streets contrasts markedly
with that of the medieval town area when seen on a plan. The plot
widths are sometimes irregular and the length is much shorter.
There is a comprehensive system of lanes or mews for service
access to houses but the great width of the streets seems to have
been dictated less by prediction of future traffic than contem-
porary notions of what was proper in a fashionable suburb. This
aim is vitiated by the diagonal pattern of parked cars usually seen
along the centre of these wide streets.

THREATS TO CONTINUITY

Wheeled traffic was little used in Ayrshire up to the middle
18th century but by 1778 the New Bridge was designed for
carriages to pass one another and wheeled traffic started the
revolution in the use of the street spaces, by banishing street
trading from the market cross at the junction of High Street and
the Sandgate. Further inroads by the traffic of vehicles abetted
the tendency started by high class retailers for retail activity to
take place in shops lining the street or in special market buildings
in back courts rather than from stalls in the open market place.
The revolution was completed by the removal of the two tolbooths
and the two market crosses in the early 19th century which had
been free standing buildings in the street space. By this time also
the ancient gates of ‘ports’ of the town had been demolished as
impediments to traffic.

The side pressures of the volume of traffic continued to increase
and in the later 19th century the east side of the High Street was set
back leaving the Wallace Tower still marking the original frontage
and Alloway Street was widened. The tramway built in 1901 for-
tunately involved little road widening but with the coming of the
motor vehicle an ever greater proportion of the street space has
been taken over by vehicles, stationary or moving. A proposal to
widen the New Bridge and demolish the 18th century buildings on
the east side of New Bridge Street seems to have been dropped,
only after the buildings were purchased and the street corner de-
molished, when it must have become apparent that instead of
opening up a view of the Town Buildings this would probably mean
their destruction as the next stage of road widening. A more recent
proposal was to demolish the central part of High Street and create
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